NortBWest
[ EICESTERSHIRE

DISTRIET GOUNEGEIL

at the heart o][ the National Forest

Meeting LOCAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Time/Day/Date 6.30 pm on Wednesday, 4 March 2015
Location Council Chamber, Council Offices, Coalville
Officer to contact Democratic Services (01530 454512)

All persons present are reminded that the meeting may be recorded and by attending this
meeting you are giving your consent to being filmed and your image being used. You are kindly
requested to make it known to the Chairman if you intend to film or record this meeting.
The Monitoring Officer would like to remind members that when they are considering whether
the following items are exempt information under the relevant paragraph under part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 they must have regard to the public interest
test. This means that members must consider, for each item, whether the public interest in
maintaining the exemption from disclosure outweighs the public interest in making the item
available to the public.
AGENDA

Item Pages
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive and note any apologies for absence.
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Under the Code of Conduct members are reminded that in declaring

disclosable interests you should make clear the nature of that interest and
whether it is pecuniary or non-pecuniary.

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2015. 3-8
4. COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

Terms of Reference attached. 9-10
5. LOCAL PLAN DESIGNATIONS

Report of the Director of Services 11-16

/- “\‘\:.,J COUNCIL OFFICES. COALVILLE, LEICESTERSHIRE, LE67 3FJ # TEL (01530) 454545 % FAX (01530) 454506

A8

L

1
-‘."\”

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

DX 23662 COALVILLE # MINICOM : (01530) 454542 % WEB SITE : http://www.nwleics.gov.uk



6. LOCAL PLAN - COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Report of the Director of Services

Circulation:

Councillor R D Bayliss

Councillor J Bridges (Chairman)
Councillor D De Lacy

Councillor C Large

Councillor J Legrys

Councillor T J Pendleton (Observer)
Councillor V Richichi

Councillor S Sheahan

17 - 22



Agenda Item 3.
43

MINUTES of a meeting of the LOCAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE held in the Council
Chamber, Council Offices, Coalville on TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

Present: Councillor J Bridges (Chairman)

Councillors D De Lacy, C Large, J Legrys, V Richichi and S Sheahan

In Attendance: Councillors R Johnson, T J Pendleton and A C Saffell

Officers: Mr M Sharp (Consultant), Mr S Bambrick, Mr D Gill, Mr | Nelson and Mr J Newton

41. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R D Bayliss.

42. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no interests declared.

43. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2014.
In response to a question from Councillor D De Lacy, the Director of Services advised that
where there was a recommendation in a report to note the comments of the Advisory
Committee and diametrically opposite views had been expressed by members, the
subsequent report would contain an officer recommendation, however all views expressed
would be noted within the report.
It was moved by Councillor J Legrys, seconded by Councillor V Richichi and

RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2014 be approved and signed by the
Chairman as a correct record.

44. COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE
By affirmation of the meeting it was
RESOLVED THAT:
The Terms of Reference be noted.
45. LIMITS TO DEVELOPMENT AND TOWN CENTRE BOUNDARIES

The Director of Services presented the report to members, which was further to the initial
report considered by the Advisory Committee in September. He reiterated that members
had asked for engagement to take place on the limits to development and the town centre
boundaries. He advised that the report documented what had taken place and the
comments received during the consultation process. He added that the maps appended
to the report showed those areas where officers considered that there may be some merit
to amending the boundaries as a result of the comments received, and therefore where no
map was provided, there was no proposed change to the boundaries.

3 Chairman’s initials




44

The Chairman advised that he had received a request to speak to this item from
Councillor A C Saffell, and he would invite him to speak at the appropriate time during the
debate.

Councillor S Sheahan commented that the map for Moira was missing quite a bit of the
village, including Donisthorpe Lane and Measham Road. He acknowledged that it would
have been difficult to fit it all in however it would have been helpful to see the whole
village.

The Planning Policy Team Manager acknowledged this point, and advised that as there
were no changes proposed to that part of Moira, the map had been enlarged for clarity.

Councillor S Sheahan requested that clearer maps be made available in future.

Councillor C Large highlighted the section of the report which referred to the Retalil
Capacity Study, which would take into account issues such as future housing growth. She
stated that Castle Donington had a proposed diminished town centre boundary with future
housing growth. She commented that it could be argued changing the boundary in this
way was premature taking into account the proposed development. She added that in
Melbourne, for example, the shops had spread up the main street as a result of increased
housing, and she had concerns that such an opportunity might be missed in Castle
Donington if the boundary was reduced.

The Planning Policy Team Manager stated that the approach taken followed advice in
national planning policy, which was to focus on existing uses. He added that in Borough
Street, there was also some residential use, so there was some scope there for retail uses
to take over these premises at a future date. He advised that officers were seeking to
ensure that the town centre boundary was defensible in line with the guidance in the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

Councillor C Large asked when the results of the Retail Capacity Study would be
available.

The Planning Policy Team Manager advised that a draft report was expected imminently.
He clarified that this would be a district level study.

The Chairman invited Councillor A C Saffell to speak as the Castle Donington town centre
boundaries were currently under discussion.

Councillor A C Saffell stated that a survey had been undertaken which identified the shops
outside of the retail area. He stated that there was a shop at 10 Bondgate which was
outside the town centre boundary, however the pub next door was within the boundary.

Councillor J Legrys sought to raise a point of order in that members did not have any
plans before them with reference to the points being raised. He stated that he welcomed
the debate but sought guidance on what was under discussion. He added with respect
that if the discussion was being opened up to areas that were not contained within the
report, he would wish to discuss Coalville town centre.

The Chairman stated that any concerns would be heard and considered by officers after
the meeting. A full debate would then follow at a future meeting.

Councillor A C Saffell stated that he did not understand how the boundaries had been
drawn, especially as the population of Castle Donington was likely to increase by up to
50%. He felt that there needed to be some flexibility in the plans to accommodate this.
He asked why the business centre was not within the town centre boundary when it was

4 Chairman’s initials




45

near to shops. He also referred to a plan which had been discussed at the Parish Council
meeting and asked what had happened to this.

The Planning Policy Team Manager reminded members that determining a town centre
boundary did not signify that there was no scope whatsoever for retail use outside of the
boundary. He advised that what would apply instead was the sequential test, which was
the approach taken with the recent supermarket application in Castle Donington. He
added that the site being outside of the town centre boundary hadn’t prevented this
development. He reiterated that the aim of policy was to maintain the town centre for
retail uses. He advised that the danger of enlarging the town centre area was that it could
become diluted. He concluded that in his view, the proposals were consistent with the
NPPF.

Councillor D De Lacy sought clarification in respect of the recommendation. He was
advised that members were being asked to recommend to Council all limits to
development and town centre boundaries, including those where no changes had been
made.

Councillor D De Lacy referred to the objections made by the Parish Council in respect of
the Ibstock town centre boundary and expressed concerns that the post office had been
cut off from the town centre. He commented that the recommendations were causing him
difficulties as if he disagreed with just 1% of the proposals, he would have to vote against
the whole recommendation. He felt that there must be a better way of dealing with this.

The Director of Services advised that members could move an amendment to the
recommendation, however he appreciated that they did not have the maps in front of them
where no changes were proposed. Alternatively, members could agree to exclude certain
settlements from their consideration and bring them back to a future meeting. He added
that members could also vote against the recommendation if they were so minded.

Councillor D De Lacy stated that he agreed with the majority of the proposals and it would
be silly to throw the baby out with the bathwater. He referred to Ibstock Parish Council’s
objection and added that people were finding it difficult to understand why the line had
been drawn where it was, and as officers did not agree with the submission from the
Parish Council he was finding it difficult to vote for.

The Planning Policy Team Manager clarified that the post office in Ibstock was located
within the town centre boundary. He advised that officers had spent a lot of time debating
the boundary as the town centre was quite spread out and there were non-retail uses on
High Street. He added that it made sense to include the post office. He acknowledged
that the doctor’s surgery was not within the town centre boundary, however this was not
necessarily a use you would expect to see in a town centre. He commented that this was
not an exact science, and the proposals left scope for further town centre uses.

The Consultant urged members to consider that the boundaries were to be used for
planning control. He advised that the broader the boundary, the less control the Planning
Committee would have, as the edge of centre would be larger. He stated that the purpose
of the boundary was to concentrate the town centre as much as possible.

Councillor J Legrys felt that it was right for the Castle Donington councillors to have made
this intervention and he thanked them for doing so. He added that the report made it clear
that that the only maps provided showed where officers wanted to make changes. He felt
aggrieved that he wasn’t aware of this and that he did not have the plans in front of him.
He stated that he could not vote for the recommendation as he was not prepared. He
requested that it be noted that he considered this had been poorly handled, as a simple
email could have addressed this. He felt that the recommendation should be deferred
until further information could be provided, or it should be voted down. He stated that he

5 Chairman’s initials




46

was conscious of the Planning Policy Team Manager’s advice that wherever a boundary
was drawn, it would be in the wrong place. He expressed his displeasure that this debate
was taking place without any information before him. He stated that there were a lot of
issues relating to the Ashby area that his colleague had raised which he did not consider
had been properly answered. He added that he could not vote for the recommendation
without any information.

Councillor V Richichi stated that he wanted to discuss the limits to development in
Packington as he was not happy with the revised plan. He commented that is seemed
applications were being waved through and the public were not being listened to. He
made reference to the ongoing judicial review and felt that these sites should be excluded
from the revised limits to development as there was currently no approval in place to
develop these sites.

The Director of Services clarified that there were ongoing legal proceedings, however the
current position was that the permissions were extant, and the proposals for the limits to
development reflected this. He added that clearly if the position changed, it would be
appropriate for members to reconsider this at a later date.

Councillor V Richichi stated that he would like it noted that the Director of Services had
stated that there was no movement in the direction of quashing the decision of the
Planning Committee. He sought assurances on this point.

The Chairman directed Councillor V Richichi to debate the matters before members and
advised him to raise any other issues outside of the meeting.

Councillor C Large suggested that in order to move forward, any settlements where
members had concerns should be excluded from the recommendation. She added that to
simply vote the recommendation down would be a waste.

The Chairman felt that this was reasonable and sought the view of other members.

Councillor D De Lacy stated that with the exception of the last intervention regarding
Packington, there had been no objections to the proposed limits to development.

Councillor J Legrys stated that his concerns were the Ashby and Coalville town centre
boundaries. He referred to the concerns raised by colleagues regarding the Castle
Donington town centre boundary and the limits to development for Packington. He felt
that members should have the opportunity to walk around these town centres.

In response to a question from Councillor S Sheahan, the Director of Services advised
that he would anticipate it would be early summer before any recommendations would be
made to Council. He clarified that the intention was that Council would be considering a
draft Local Plan, so if individual elements were deferred, they would be delayed, but would
all come together as part of the draft Local Plan.

The Director of Services summarised that members had raised concerns regarding the
proposed town centre boundaries for Ashby, Coalville, Ibstock and Castle Donington, and
the limits to development for Packington. He suggested that a further report could be
brought back to the Advisory Committee on these areas specifically with more detail.

The Chairman also requested that members receive further guidance on the purpose of
the town centre boundaries, why widening the town centre might not be the best course of
action, and advice on the NPPF and the sequential approach.

Councillor D De Lacy supported this as he felt it was not clear. He stated that he would
like to know what the implications were of being outside of the town centre boundary.

6 Chairman’s initials




46.

a7

The Chairman also requested that officers communicate more clearly with members.
RESOLVED THAT:

a) The Advisory Committee notes the response to the recent consultation in respect of
the draft limits to development and revised town centre boundaries

b) The Advisory Committee recommends to full Council that the draft limits to
development and revised town centre boundaries are approved to be included as
part of the new Local Plan, with the exception of the following areas:

i)  Ashby town centre boundary

ii)  Castle Donington town centre boundary
iif)  Coalville town centre boundary

iv) lbstock town centre boundary

v)  Packington limits to development

RECENT LOCAL PLAN EXAMINATIONS

The Director of Services presented the report to members. He recalled that this meeting
had been deferred as the outcome of the Charnwood Local Plan examination was
awaited. He added that officers felt it was appropriate to give an update as Charnwood
was clearly of the most relevance as it was relying upon part of the same evidence base
as the Council, the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA). He stated that using
the SHMA as part of the evidence base had been tested through the Charnwood
examination and there had been some challenge from developers on this point. He
advised that the full view from the Inspector was not yet known, however it was telling that
no specific issues had been raised regarding the validity of the SHMA. He added that this
was good news as it was one of the key risks, as if the SHMA was found wanting it would
have a significant knock-on effect on the Council’s Local Plan. He stated that this was
positive news, and the SHMA would still be utilised as the starting point, and there would
be no need to revisit this work. The Inspector’s final decision was still awaited, and it was
not yet know what modifications he would be requesting.

Councillor J Legrys welcomed the statement from the Director of Services. He stated that
he had had the opportunity to have a lengthy meeting with his Labour colleagues at
Charnwood regarding and he was not as excited as the Director of Services regarding the
SHMA based on their response. He commented that the SHMA was only comfortable
until it was challenged by a developer and this could happen at any time. He referred to
the outstanding judicial review against the Inspector’s decision on the Packington Nook
application, and sought clarification whether there was a challenge on the SHMA from the
developer. He expressed concerns that the SHMA was fragile. He added that he was
confident about dealing with any challenge, however he would appreciate clarity on the
position regarding the Packington Nook application.

The Legal Advisor clarified that there was an ongoing judicial review in respect of the
Packington Nook application. The Council was the second defendant and would be
putting forward a robust defence.

Councillor C Large requested an update on the timescales for the Local Plan and the
current position on the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) in
respect of further assessments and deliverability.

The Planning Policy Team Manager advised that it was intended to recommend a draft
Local Plan to Council in the early summer. A consultation would then follow and
depending on the outcome of this it was likely to take a further 4 to 5 months to

7 Chairman’s initials




48

recommend the final Local Plan to Council which would be submitted to the Secretary of
State 3 to 4 months afterwards. He advised that the SHLAA would need to be updated.

He added that deliverability was considered in a general sense, but not in as much detail
as for the Local Plan.

Councillor C Large commented that SHLAAs were the first step in considering allocations
in the Local Plan, and as such she would have thought deliverability was a key issue.

The Planning Policy Team Manager advised that this was one of the criteria, however it
was simply a matter of the resources required to assess the hundreds of sites in the
SHLAA. He added that when it came to the Local Plan allocation, the Inspector would
want to see much more detail about the deliverability of sites.

The Chairman stated that deliverability was a major concern and was a difficult call for
officers. He added that he believed officers were making headway, however this was still
a relatively now concept.

Councillor D De Lacy sought clarification on the Charnwood examination, and how it could
be known that the Inspector was happy with the housing figures without knowing his full
opinion.

The Director of Services stated that the Inspector made some suggestions that the figures
may need a slight increase, but if he had had significant concerns regarding the SHMA,
the Local Plan would not have got through the inspection stage and the Inspector would
have found it to be unsound even with modifications. He concluded that the principle of
utilising the SHMA as part of the evidence base was sound.

The Planning Policy Team Manager added that it was important to note that the
Charnwood housing requirement was slightly below what was indicated in the SHMA and
the Inspector had asked officers if it would cause them a problem if the figures were
increased in line with the SHMA.

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm

The Chairman closed the meeting at 7.35 pm

8 Chairman’s signature




Agenda Item 4.

LOCAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TERMS OF REFERENCE

Purpose of the Local Plan Advisory Committee

To enable cross-party discussion, guidance and support for the development of the North West Leicestershire
Local Plan.

Role of the Local Plan Advisory Committee

To consider and comment on documents that relate to the North West Leicestershire Local Plan
including (but not restricted to) policy options, draft policies and evidence prepared to support the
Plan.

To make recommendations as required to Council in respect of the North West Leicestershire Local
Plan.

To monitor progress on the preparation of the North West Leicestershire Local Plan.
To provide updates to other Members who do not sit on the Local Plan Advisory Committee.

To consider and comment on responses to plans being prepared by other local planning authorities as
part of the Duty to Cooperate.

Membership of the Local Plan Advisory Committee

The Advisory Committee comprises four Members of the ruling group and three Members from the
opposition group.

The Council’s Substitution Scheme will apply.
The Advisory Committee will select a Chair at its first meeting of each civic year.

Other members may be invited to attend and participate in meetings of the Advisory Committee in a
non-voting capacity at the discretion of the Chair.

The Advisory Committee meetings must have at least 3 members to be quorate.

Operation of the Local Plan Advisory Committee

Council Procedure Rule 4 will apply to the Local Plan Advisory Committee

The Advisory Committee will meet at least once every two months, but will meet more frequently
where necessary to enable continued progress on the North West Leicestershire Local Plan.

The Advisory Committee will have no direct decision-making powers but will consider documents and
information relating to the Local Plan and make recommendations to Council. Any such report will
include specific comments and issues raised by the minority group.

The Advisory Committee will be supported by the Director of Service and officers in the Planning
Policy Team.

Meetings will be organised, administered and minuted by Democratic Services with agendas and
minutes being made available on the Council’s website.

The Portfolio Holder may attend as an observer.

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5.

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

LOCAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE - 4 MARCH 2015

Title of report LOCAL PLAN DESIGNATIONS

Councillor Trevor Pendleton
01509 569746
trevor.pendleton@nwleicestershire.qgov.uk

Director of Services
01530 454555
steve.bambrick@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Contacts Head of Planning & Regeneration

01530 454782
jim.newton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Planning Policy Team Manager
01530 454677
ian.nelson@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

To outline for Members some of the various designations which

Purpose of report are likely to be included in the draft Local Plan.

These are taken from the Council Delivery Plan:

Value for Money

Business and Jobs

Homes and Communities
Green Footprints Challenge

Council Priorities

Implications:
Financial/Staff None
Link to relevant CAT None

A risk assessment of the project has been undertaken and is
available for members to view. As far as possible control measures
have been put in place to minimise these risks, including monthly
Project Board meetings where risk is reviewed.

Risk Management

Equalities Impact Screening | None

Human Rights None

11


mailto:trevor.pendleton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
mailto:steve.bambrick@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jim.newton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
mailto:ian.nelson@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Transformational
Government

Not applicable

Comments of Head of Paid
Service

The report is satisfactory

Comments of Section 151
Officer

The report is satisfactory

Comments of Deputy
Monitoring Officer

The report is satisfactory

Consultees

Local Plan Project Board

Background papers

The adopted Local Plan which can be viewed at
www.nwleics.gov.uk/pages/local plan

Recommendations

THAT MEMBERS NOTE AND COMMENT ON THE SUGGESTED
DESIGNATIONS TO BE INCLUDED IN THE LOCAL PLAN

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 A key part of the new Local Plan will be to identify on a policies map (referred to in the
National Planning Policy Framework as a proposals map) any policy designations which
are to apply to a specific site or area.

1.2 The purpose of this report is to outline for Members those designations which it is
suggested should be included as part of the new Local Plan. Those areas which are the
subject of a designation on the proposals map will require a corresponding policy within

the Plan itself.

2.0 AREA DESIGNATIONS

2.1 The following designations are suggested:

Designation

Comment

National Forest

This will identify that part of the district which lies within
the National Forest and will be as the existing Local Plan.

Charnwood Forest

This will identify that part of the district which lies within
the Charnwood Forest. This will be based upon the
agreed area for the Charnwood Forest Regional Park as
identified at Appendix A.

Conservation

River Mease Special Area of

This will identify the extent of the river Mease Special
Area of Conservation, which is restricted to the river
Mease and part of the Gilwiskaw Brook.

12



http://www.nwleics.gov.uk/pages/local_plan

Designation

Comment

River Mease Special Area of
Conservation policy area

This will identify the extent of the area to which the river
Mease policy area will apply and is based on the river
Mease catchment area which includes most of the south-
west part of the district around and including Ashby de la
Zouch and Measham.

Sites of Special Scientific Interest

Areas identified by Natural England for their ecological
significance.

Limits to Development

These define the settlement boundaries and have
previously been considered at meetings of the Advisory
Committee.

Countryside

This will apply to areas outside of the Limits to
Development including those settlements without limits to
development.

Town Centre boundaries

These will define the extent of the various Town Centres
as previously considered at meetings of the Advisory
Committee.

Town Centre policy areas

These will include any Primary Shopping Areas, Primary
Frontages and Secondary Frontages.

Areas of Separation

These will identify any areas which are to be subject to
any specific policy which seeks to ensure the
maintenance of separation between specified
settlements. This is considered in more detail below.

Route of the Ashby Canal

This will identify the route of the former Ashby Canal
which is to be protected in order to enable its potential
restoration.

National Forest line

This will apply to the Leicester-Burton railway which
passes through the district in order to enable its potential
reopening.

East Midlands Airport

This will identify the extent of the airport operational area.
In addition, Public Safety Zones (areas at the ends of the
runway where certain types of development are not
permitted) and the extent of the Safeguarded Area (within
which certain types of development have to be subject to
consultation with the airport) will be identified.

Donington Park

This will identify the extent of the policy area which seeks
to control the type of development at Donington Park.

2.2 In addition to the above, site specific proposals for development, such as housing,
employment and retail, will also be identified on the policies map.

2.3 In terms of Areas of Separation, the adopted Local Plan identifies five such areas (Policy

E21). These areas are:

(a) Hugglescote - Ellistown;

(b) Ibstock — Heather:

(c) Coalville — Ravenstone:
(d) Donisthorpe — Moira; and

(e) Hemington - Castle Donington.”

13




2.4

2.5

These areas are outside of the Limits to Development but importantly, are not also
designated as countryside. Following a detailed review of these areas it is concluded that
it would be more appropriate to not designate these as Areas of Separation in the new
Local Plan but instead to designate them as countryside. The issue of maintaining
separation would be included as part of the countryside policy where it would be one of a
number of considerations. It is considered that this afford these areas, as well as other
areas not currently identified as Areas of Separation, more than sufficient protection in
respect of separation issues.

Members will recall that as part of the Core Strategy it was proposed to designate the
eastern and central parts of what are currently designate as the Green Wedge between
Coalville and Whitwick as Areas of Separation. It is proposed that these still be designated
as Areas of Separation as they cannot be regarded as areas of countryside as they are
within the built up area surrounded by development and so are within the suggested Limits
to Development. In these circumstances, if this area is to be protected from development
in accordance with the previously expressed views of both the Council (in the Core
Strategy) and the local community, it will be necessary to apply a suitable policy that
makes this clear. It is considered that designating them as Areas of Separation makes the
purpose of such a designation clear i.e. it is to ensure that Coalville and Whitwick retain
their separate identify.

14



ST

Proposed Charnwood Forest
Regional Park Boundary 2008

Settlement

Motorway

Main Road
Railway Line

Rivers & Canals

TEP ref: G1645.019e

Based on Ordnance Survey Data with permission
of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office,
Crown Copyright Leicestershire County Council.
Licence Number: 100019271

Project:

Charnwood Forest Landscape
Character Assessment

Figure No:

019

Drawing Title:

Proposed Charnwood Forest
Regional Park Working Boundary

Scale:

0 1 2 3 4km
A aaa— [ S——

Rpra————i
a=~puys
A G:Is:d?};odée

N\ Fm

b

don Brand,_
-1 Belton/ =
/*—/

Greaveley O,

“Tes bW HILL
hﬁ’i ;‘ o=
lest En

//‘a:// /ﬁé

] | Se-

%

Lodge 24

nor v/

=i

/" Corner
) —b

2 Weods

S,
RS

[ TNNTA
AN

U

o
Wy I
=

Donirgton’
(e Heat e o) f 4

Lo S
Q. ™o
%<
Uf a2 Torick Wi
Vi

ki r}ng‘é?gngc
Em,

I e
3

Bagworth )%
Chgiibi

/{‘%Lu.
/i’\ {
Y STT
LoAd

Dbl
Bagworth\,

IR __a
* Lount 132
Fm

‘ +Ermaulns
-Osbaston o~
Lbdde Fm <Y

A 7z
dowpattives
R e
Ky
> Y
?@'H F)W
s Hotel
£

A

[
YR Wiy
o A
\WYA

SpringWBufréin

A=
7Poa ch?s‘\};\\

Heath © \
4 j?
/

T

Highfields

- Menor 7%

4
/’/\
\

Ay
Y .
Blackbrook” —
< _Fni’ 1>

8 A ”/zﬁl‘?; ) T\

Finhey N | /S Moaray P \\ e @y
241 ey \ %y i PR
Jm~ Espring Fm N 4] . | o\neebort

4N ey . W R Logoe

g W\
{ =3 [ i &

RS

NSRRI A

RN SR

A ~5

NN\ A

S ) yi
L
v R
Y e o e L
o ybrook L \\?/ '(Onks}k\ gx),/cx\/«
5;:moCh‘arl2wc‘L),(\§‘d;5\ “ubetour

e Fm

o “Eva
Oaks Fm ¢y \\ \

R A N
“léptos rnwf;‘;%k\‘l\
L5 = \O" 7 N

Pt N
Timberwood S |
gt

H %

AN

/' Chatiey Mitl_Fm

\V)

SN
\\

TS

G

()\V\s
2,

i\ O £
G Utierscratt\Cottags ) §
\Em b}

2

T,
\,’\/rv/unngtc"rwQ
([ Grange
]
il
I
sNew Hayes
m

o L
/Au?»*‘f

/Fox ChVert
Fon |

15//Great Fox |
.. // Covért
idge ===\
o
o,
Lindridge Hall. -~ -
/P

118 Cemy
S B
RABEHZ =2
75T
ECCII \\
=
ST
4 UK
2
ockey 7/ ') é{f{
Fm@’ Shericles ¢ N
GEm

[V
L
_ Kirkby Old
1 Parcs

2

NS e
i/

P M
LS E - ;>\
el 7

A
GreatWopd &
(earioRe 8
-\ Bbndmar A
Tl

g % =
- y_,{ff 3 /»% ¢

i ~_ Obelisl

I 317/{5 iy :

,'llﬂ Garendon /{

i P J

—

ot

mple |

of Venus /‘r)
a

4 /
i et

2 2
% - =N & s
/ o5 P
- ~ /4%‘,3/1 i ;
Jes ?,\15@; fé\;,gggejf&g:;{c._ S
Y 3 MmN ey uck
S S 17«37/@&;}9(3{""2 ! Lk \ Waol

AN AT SN
16}‘// whitcle ,f‘v)‘/\q' %hého/og

/ \‘\6@ Sy B

\ Blekbira's | N\

N

Y
@ N | Nest

N By B Y
— N\ S 2 Iy )\ Hangingstona
x ) e > \ Hills \vo

7o) ‘\//\D
o\ 5 -

N 7K R A P gEcon 2oty
\/ £288 ST fin N

< Earthworks"

A\
// I CHilly,

N AN
U '/récra‘t Lodge
LFm

o 5 Priory

8y

\ \\

AR A
e TN

eyivell LA 2y e

\
IF /I'\\\,be A 7k Woodra

395

//A“’

’:*jz “Newtowned
SN Linford

\eres  Groby Park
s Fm y

e

3 Pocket Gate Fm \—

Park,
RRER

. -\
Whatott~ 2\
| o Y
AV P Q
\"_Aauorn & S A
WOODHOUSE-STA>”§
N

7 °1
Beaumanor

‘ o j‘ y N E
S \\ _;{\2};.}3@\/ Fields 4 3
\ P /W 5
- H it

&

! .:\ai.en:: 3}}\, < '\\/’eenscuﬂe&e\\/‘ H‘;\‘\‘\
N 4 RN e\ A
\ SR

/ulve(écrcer\r Go W 3 Vol
SGrange, | /S e “‘ o S )//
0 A N7ty LI Ez
)7 ﬁhw@man\m N b~ |
. HillLFm L # 4
¢ 3 : N
X / A lo

- Aktey HighF
=== B Leys

TSheet'Hedq:’?\'f“u\(\ ]
Ap 5 Wodd o

\ e/
P Y oalEh 1
i i S~

TIotons, >‘
W

1PN

N

\

e P

=

e

-

i s

s
V&
R i
G}Counw L

4

CH_ a8
o g,:/’}‘ %3{; g

§’
7, IV HosplSSLE
el

N Si?s g e
T 8urton Bandalls¥
\

&
N S Manor Lodge

- \\\\\%?\"“ ’\\\\?Wat!on - fm

22 v
X2
7 )>$to€'\ahursy
$ ) e

Ji) Prestw
}X e

U T
| MWalton N

g “on the Wotds\

7 \
X Gypsum
SN

SRS
F (s A




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6.

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

LOCAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE -4 MARCH 2015

Title of report

LOCAL PLAN — COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Contacts

Councillor Trevor Pendleton
01509 569746
trevor.pendleton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Director of Services
01530 454555
steve.bambrick@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Head of Planning & Regeneration
01530 454782
jim.newton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Planning Policy Team Manager
01530 454677
ian.nelson@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Purpose of report

To outline for Members proposals for engaging with local
communities and businesses on the draft Local Plan when it has
been agreed by Council.

Council Priorities

These are taken from the Council Delivery Plan:

Value for Money

Business and Jobs

Homes and Communities
Green Footprints Challenge

Implications:
Financial/Staff

Link to relevant CAT

Risk Management

Equalities Impact Screening
Human Rights

Transformational
Government

None
None

A failure to engage effectively and constructively in the preparation
of the Local Plan could leave the Council vulnerable to challenge.

None

None

Not applicable

17


mailto:trevor.pendleton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
mailto:steve.bambrick@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jim.newton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
mailto:ian.nelson@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Comments of Head of Paid
Service

The report is satisfactory

Comments of Section 151
Officer

The report is satisfactory

Comments of Monitoring
Officer

The report is satisfactory

Consultees Local Plan Project Board

Background papers

Statement of Community Involvement , January 2015
http://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/s5840/Cabinet%20-
%02013%20Jan%2015%20-
%20SCI1%20Appendix%20A%20Final.pdf

THAT MEMBERS NOTE THE PROPOSED COMMUNITY

Recommendations ENGAGEMENT PLAN IN RESPECT OF THE DRAFT LOCAL
PLAN
1.0 BACKGROUND
1.1 Members will be aware that an important part of the process of preparing the Local Plan is

1.2

1.3

14

to engage with local communities and businesses. A new Statement of Community
Involvement (SCI) which sets out in general terms how the Council will engage on
planning matters was approved by Cabinet at its meeting on 13 January 2015.

The SCI by its nature is generic and it will be necessary to determine the exact nature and
form of engagement depending upon the plan being prepared, its nature and scope and
the stage of preparation.

When the draft Local Plan has been agreed by Council it will then be published for
consultation to ascertain the views of all those with an interest in the future of the district.
The SCI suggests that at this stage in the preparation of the Local Plan that consultation
will be for 6-12 weeks. It is considered that 12 weeks would be appropriate and should
ensure that all those who wish to engage with the consultation can do so.

In order to plan and undertake the consultation in a structured manner a Community
Engagement Plan has been prepared and is attached at Appendix A of this report. When
there is an agreed date for the Local Plan to go to Council then it will be possible to add in
some dates to the various strands of the Community Engagement Plan.

18



http://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/s5840/Cabinet%20-%2013%20Jan%2015%20-%20SCI%20Appendix%20A%20Final.pdf
http://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/s5840/Cabinet%20-%2013%20Jan%2015%20-%20SCI%20Appendix%20A%20Final.pdf
http://minutes-1.nwleics.gov.uk/documents/s5840/Cabinet%20-%2013%20Jan%2015%20-%20SCI%20Appendix%20A%20Final.pdf

6T

Local Plan ‘have your say’

Community engagement plan 2015-16

This action plan sets out how we will engage residents and communities® and other interested parties as we develop the draft Local
Plan.

The action plan has been developed by Planning Policy, Community Focus and Communications team members. Resources to

deliver this action plan will be sought from these three teams as a priority with input from other council teams as necessary.

Planning Policy
Community Focus
Communications

Draft — February 2015



0¢

Ref.

Target audience (who)

Activity

Engagement methods and

consultation techniques

1. Parish and Town Councils Update at the Parish Liaison face to face engagement
meeting of future plans and recruiting parishes to register interest in facilitating local consultation
opportunities to engage in the sessions in Sept 2015 (an opportunity to find out what
process support/resources they will need)
2. Parish and Town Councils Local Plan available for Web-based ‘citizen space’
Residents consultation Hard copies available in community venues? with feedback forms for
Businesses completion
Landowners Parish Councils formally Local Plan to be considered at appropriate Parish Council meetings
Developers informed of the draft Local Plan or special meetings - encourage comments/responses to be
and asked to engage in the received via the on-line process (citizen space)
consultation Emails and letters to people on existing databases informing that
Local Plan available for consultation, including a link to the website
Press releases, social media
Advertorials in selected community newsletters (cost implications)
Articles in community newsletters (issued July, inclusion in
September publications — at the editors discretion)
Business Focus newsletter to include an article on consultation
Personal emails to key businesses contacts (e.g. Chamber,
Federation of Small Businesses) to help spread the word amongst
businesses
3. Parish and Town Councils Local Plan to be considered at appropriate Parish Council meetings

or special meetings - encourage comments/responses to be
received via the on-line process (citizen space)

Parish and Town Councils

Work with Parish Councils to
arrange local consultation
sessions and provide resources
to support these events

‘do it yourself’ resource packs to be sent to Parish Councils




T¢

Ref.

Target audience (who)

Activity

Engagement methods and

consultation techniques

College

Timing — thbc

Further engagement of young
people — opportunities to be
explored with LCC — Youth
Voice Worker

group (x2) with pre-registered
young people (approx. 20 per
workshop)

4, Parish and Town Councils ¢ Local Plan to be considered at appropriate Parish Council meetings
or special meetings - encourage comments/responses to be
received via the on-line process (citizen space)

Parish and Town Councils Local consultation sessions, o face to face engagement with local residents, raising awareness of
Residents organised by parish councils how they can get involved and why
Businesses and supported (as appropriate)
Landowners by district council officers
Developers
5. The Local Plan comes to your o face to face engagement with local residents, raising awareness of
community ‘have your say’ how they can get involved and why
(using the council trailer and
‘parking up’ in high footfall
locations®)
6. Young people — Stephenson | Local Plan workshop/focus ¢ tailored workshop, capturing the views and opinions of young people

face to face engagement with local young people, raising awareness
of how they can get involved and why




cc

Media Campaign

Mediums
e Local press (hewspapers, radio)

e Community newsletters (advertorials and editorial)

e Social media (facebook, twitter)

¢ Work emails — corporate signature to carry the ‘Local Plan’ message

e Local Plan message in council buildings (District Council reception, leisure centres, housing ‘community’ rooms)
Materials

o Posters (eight messages, based on the eight chapters ‘do you agree...) — with the aim of engaging different audiences
Empty belly posters for Parishes to promote local events

Leaflets

Postcards

Magnetic posters for council vehicles

Business cards

Detailed actions

Each activity will be scoped and actions allocated to appropriate teams, all will be planned working to a July 2015 start date, if the process is
delayed, each activity timeline will be altered as appropriate.

! Parish councils, civic societies, town centre partnerships, young people and businesses

% Libraries, Parish offices (6 in the district), community cafes, Leisure centre, village halls, community offices etc.

3 Ashby de la Zouch (Market Street), Ashby de la Zouch (Tesco), Castle Donington (Co-op), Coalville (Morrisons), Coalville (town centre/Belvoir Centre),
Ibstock (location tbc), Measham (location tbc)



	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4. Committee Terms of Reference
	5. Local Plan Designations
	Appendix A

	6. Local Plan - Community Engagement
	Appendix A


